
 

 
 

AGENDA 
June 5, 2012 

2:00 P.M. 
Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 

101 E. Wilson Street, 2nd Floor 
Madison, Wisconsin 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
2. Approve Minutes – May 15, 2012 
 
3. Approve Loans 
 
4. Proposed Submerged Lands Lease – Dairyland Power Cooperative 
 
5. Executive Secretary’s Report 
 
6. Adjourn 

 



State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
 

BOARD MEETING 
JUNE 5, 2012 

 
AGENDA ITEM 2 

APPROVE MINUTES 
 
 

Attached for approval are the minutes from the May 15, 2012, board meeting. 
 



State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
 

Board Meeting Minutes 
May 15, 2012 

 
ITEM 1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
Board Chair La Follette called the meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Public Lands to order at 2:00 p.m. 
 

Present were:   
Doug La Follette, Board Chair Secretary of State 
Kurt Schuller, Commissioner State Treasurer 
J.B. Van Hollen, Commissioner Attorney General 
Tia Nelson, Executive Secretary Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
Tom German, Deputy Secretary Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
Richard Sneider, Loan Analyst Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 

 
ITEM 2.  APPROVE MINUTES – MAY 2, 2012 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Van Hollen moved to approve the minutes; Commissioner Schuller seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed 3-0. 
 
ITEM 3.  APPROVE LOANS 
 
Executive Secretary Nelson said the loans had received legal review. 
 
Municipality Municipal Type Loan Amount 
 
1. Frederic Village $200,000.00 
 Polk County Rate: 4.00% 
 Application #: 02012123 Term:  20 years 
 Purpose: Finance street reconstruction and repair 
 
2. Gillett School $154,000.00 
 Oconto and Shawano Counties Rate: 2.75% 
 Application #: 02012120 Term:  5 years 
 Purpose: Refinance football stadium debt 
 
3. Gillett School $472,016.03 
 Oconto and Shawano Counties Rate: 3.50% 
 Application #: 02012121 Term:  10 years 
 Purpose: Refinance BCPL Loan #2007081.01 
 
4. Jacksonport Town $27,895.00 
 Door County Rate: 2.75% 
 Application #: 02012124 Term:  1 year 
 Purpose: Purchase water rescue boat 
 
5. Primrose Town $125,000.00 
 Dane County Rate: 2.75% 
 Application #: 02012116 Term:  5 years 
 Purpose: Refinance other outstanding debt 
 
6. Reeseville Village $939,000.00 
 Dodge County Rate: 4.00% 
 Application #: 02012113 Term:  16 years 
 Purpose: Refinance bank loans 



Minutes 
May 15, 2012 
Page 2  Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
 
7. River Falls Town $125,000.00 
 Pierce County Rate: 2.75% 
 Application #: 02012114 Term:  1 year 
 Purpose: Finance road maintenance and construction 
 
8. River Falls Town $102,000.00 
 Pierce County Rate: 2.75% 
 Application #: 02012115 Term:  3 years 
 Purpose: Purchase plow truck and equipment 
 
9. Washburn School $515,378.61 
 Bayfield County Rate: 3.50% 
 Application #: 02012118 Term:  10 years 
 Purpose: Refinance BCPL Loan #2007028.01 
 
10. Washburn School $129,000.00 
 Bayfield County Rate: 3.00% 
 Application #: 02012119 Term:  10 years 
 Purpose: Finance school operation and maintenance costs 
 
11. West Bend City $432,400.00 
 Washington County Rate: 3.00% 
 Application #: 02012117 Term:  10 years 
 Purpose: Finance TIF district projects                           
 
 TOTAL $3,221,689.64 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Van Hollen moved to approve the loans; Commissioner Schuller seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed 3-0.  
 
ITEM 4.  EXECUTIVE SECRETARY’S REPORT 
 
Executive Secretary Nelson reported that agency staff had met with State of Wisconsin Investment Board 
personnel to discuss investment options for Trust Fund monies that are not encumbered. 
 
She also said that she has been offered a full-tuition scholarship to attend the week-long Yale University 
Conservation Finance Camp in June.  The course will focus on forest economics and finance.  The agency would 
be responsible for transportation and lodging. 
 
Finally, she said the $2.7 million check presentation to the Village of Necedah on May 14 went well.  Village 
officials, Representative Brooks and Senator Schultz expressed their appreciation for the Board’s actions on the 
matter. 
 
ITEM 5.  ADJOURN 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Van Hollen moved to adjourn the meeting; Commissioner Schuller seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed 3-0. 

                    
 Tia Nelson, Executive Secretary 
 
These minutes have been prepared from a tape recording of the meeting.  The summaries have not been transcribed verbatim.  
Anyone wishing to listen to the tape may do so at the Board of Commissioners of Public Lands, 101 E. Wilson Street, 2nd 
Floor, Madison, Wisconsin. 

 



State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands

BOARD MEETING

JUNE  5, 2012

AGENDA ITEM 3

APPROVE LOANS

Municipality Municipal Type Loan Amount

Town $75,000.00Cadiz1.

Rate: 2.75%Green County

Term: 3 yearsApplication #: 02012139

Purpose: Purchase tractor with loader

Town $375,000.00Calumet2.

Rate: 2.75%Fond Du Lac County

Term: 5 yearsApplication #: 02012122

Purpose: Finance road construction

Town $157,319.09Calumet3.

Rate: 2.75%Fond Du Lac County

Term: 4 yearsApplication #: 02012130

Purpose: Refinance BCPL Loan #2011149.01

Town $135,206.81Calumet4.

Rate: 2.75%Fond Du Lac County

Term: 4 yearsApplication #: 02012131

Purpose: Refinance BCPL Loan #02011149.02

Town $306,101.07Calumet5.

Rate: 3.00%Fond Du Lac County

Term: 8 yearsApplication #: 02012132

Purpose: Refinance BCPL Loan #2010197.01

School $176,000.00Coleman6.

Rate: 2.75%Marinette and Oconto Counties

Term: 5 yearsApplication #: 02012134

Purpose: Finance school renovation projects

Village $1,026,056.00Combined Locks7.

Rate: 2.75%Outagamie County

Term: 5 yearsApplication #: 02012135

Purpose: Finance street construction

School $675,000.00Elkhart Lake-Glenbeulah8.

Rate: 2.75%Sheboygan County

Term: 5 yearsApplication #: 02012138

Purpose: Finance re-roofing of district buildings



Board of Commissioners of Public Lands

Board Meeting - June  5, 2012

Agenda Item 3 - Approve Loans

Page 2

Municipality Municipal Type Loan Amount

Village $150,000.00Lake Hallie9.

Rate: 2.75%Chippewa County

Term: 5 yearsApplication #: 02012133

Purpose: Purchase defibrilators

School $456,639.00Laona10.

Rate: 4.50%Forest County

Term: 16 yearsApplication #: 02012128

Purpose: Refinance BCPL Loan #2009135.01

School $600,000.00Laona11.

Rate: 2.75%Forest County

Term: 3 yearsApplication #: 02012129

Purpose: Refinance other outstanding debt

Lake District $50,000.00Little Green Lake Pro & 

Rehab Dist

12.

Rate: 3.00%Green Lake County

Term: 10 yearsApplication #: 02012125

Purpose: Finance sewer facilities operations and maintenance

Lake District $179,394.00Little Green Lake Pro & 

Rehab Dist

13.

Rate: 3.00%Green Lake County

Term: 10 yearsApplication #: 02012126

Purpose: Purchase weed harvester

Lake District $149,805.00Little Green Lake Pro & 

Rehab Dist

14.

Rate: 3.00%Green Lake County

Term: 10 yearsApplication #: 02012127

Purpose: Refinance BCPL Loan #02011158.01

Town $260,000.00Neenah15.

Rate: 3.00%Winnebago County

Term: 10 yearsApplication #: 02012137

Purpose: Purchase fire truck

Town $99,500.00Superior16.

Rate: 3.00%Douglas County

Term: 10 yearsApplication #: 02012136

Purpose: Purchase tractor/mower



Board of Commissioners of Public Lands

Board Meeting - June  5, 2012

Agenda Item 3 - Approve Loans

Page 3

Municipality Municipal Type Loan Amount

Town $176,202.00Woodruff17.

Rate: 3.00%Oneida County

Term: 10 yearsApplication #: 02012140

Purpose: Purchase fire truck

Town $174,684.26Woodruff18.

Rate: 3.00%Oneida County

Term: 7 yearsApplication #: 02012141

Purpose: Refinance BCPL Loan #02010105.01

$5,221,907.23TOTAL



State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
 

BOARD MEETING 
JUNE 5, 2012 

 
AGENDA ITEM 4 

PROPOSED SUBMERGED LANDS LEASE - DAIRYLAND POWER COOPERATIVE 
 
 

A. The Board of Commissioners of Public Lands previously entered into a fifty-year 
Submerged Lands Lease (Lease #134) with Dairyland Power Cooperative (“Dairyland”) 
on August 1, 1962 (the “1962 Lease”).  The area subject to the 1962 Lease is 
approximately 15 acres of land lying under the Mississippi River in the town of Genoa, 
Vernon County Wisconsin, illustrated on the map attached as Exhibit A.   

 
 
B. The Public Service Commission of Wisconsin issued Findings of Fact and Statutory 

Findings #2-WF-1589 that Dairyland’s proposal for a Submerged Land Lease for the 
purpose of “improving navigational facilities as well as a site for related facilities for 
generation of electricity” was found consistent with the public interest.  A copy of these 
findings is attached as Exhibit B. 

 
C. Pursuant to the 1962 Lease, Dairyland filled certain areas of the Mississippi River bed 

and constructed navigational improvements and also provided public access to the 
Mississippi River through certain improvements constructed in a separate area.  
Dairyland spent over $100,000 to construct the public access improvements.  This was a 
material part of the consideration provided by Dairyland under the Lease.  

 
D. Dairyland desires to enter into a new 50 year lease with the Board of Commissioners of 

Public Lands for the same area currently subject to the 1962 Lease as described on 
Exhibit A.   

 
E. On April 6, 2012, the DNR issued findings pursuant to Section 30.11 Wisconsin Statutes 

relating to a Proposed Lease to Dairyland Power Cooperative – Genoa Station.  The 
findings noted that the DNR had completed an investigation of the lease site and had 
evaluated Dairyland’s proposal.  The findings stated that, “The proposed Lease extension 
will not result in any physical changes in the area, such as additional filling of submerged 
lands and the public access required by the Original Lease remains available and in good 
repair…The Department has determined the proposed Lease will not adversely affect 
water quality, will not increase water pollution in surface waters and will not cause 
environmental pollution as defined in Wis. Stats. s 283.01 (6m), provided Dairyland 
Power Cooperative complies with existing federal and state environmental and energy 
regulations.”  The Findings concluded that, “The Lease is consistent with the public 
interest in the navigable waters of the Mississippi River …”  A copy of the Findings 
are attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

 



F. The issuance of the above Findings by the DNR allows BCPL to enter into a new 
Submerged Lands Lease with Dairyland if BCPL so chooses.   

 
G. BCPL staff recommends that the Board authorize a new fifty-year Submerged Lands 

Lease with Dairyland at a beginning rental rate of $2,300 per year with regular, scheduled 
rent increases over the term of the lease to a rate of $5,423 per year and further require 
that Dairyland continue to provide suitable public access facilities to allow the general 
public access to the Mississippi River.  The proposed initial lease rental rate for the new 
lease has been calculated by taking the original rental rate for the 1962 lease and 
increasing it by the changes in the Consumer Price Index over that period of time.  As 
noted above, a significant consideration by Dairyland in the 1962 Lease was the 
provision of public access facilities allowing the public to access the Mississippi River.  
This provision of public access is also a significant consideration required of Dairyland 
under the new proposed Lease.   

 
 

PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of 
Public Lands authorizes a new fifty-year Submerged Lands Lease with Dairyland Power 
Cooperative in accordance with Section 24.39 of the Wisconsin Statutes with a beginning 
rental rate of Two Thousand Three Hundred Dollars ($2,300.00) per year with regular 
scheduled rent increases over the term of the Lease to a rate of $5,423 per year and a 
requirement that Dairyland provide suitable public access facilities to the Mississippi 
River and on such other terms and conditions as the Executive Secretary determines to be 
reasonable and necessary.  The Executive Secretary is authorized and directed to execute 
any documents reasonably necessary to complete such transaction. 

 
 
 
Exhibit A:  Map of area to be leased 
Exhibit B: WI Public Service Commission Findings 1962 
Exhibit C: WI DNR’s Findings of Fact 
 



halvev
Text Box
Item 4Exhibit A



halvev
Text Box
Item 4Exhibit B













halvev
Text Box
Item 4Exhibit C

halvev
Typewritten Text




	Agenda
	June 5, 2012

	Item2_ApproveMinutes
	State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands
	BOARD MEETING
	JUNE 5, 2012
	APPROVE MINUTES


	State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands
	ITEM 1.  CALL TO ORDER
	ITEM 2.  APPROVE MINUTES – MAY 2, 2012


	Item3_ApproveLoans
	Item4_DairylandPowerCoopSubmergedLandsLease
	State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands
	BOARD MEETING
	JUNE 5, 2012



	Item4_ExhibitA
	Item4_ExhibitB
	Item4_ExhibitC



